OFFICIAL COPY

WINNETKA PROFESSIONAL AGREEMENT

2022-2023 through 2026-2027

Table of Contents

PREAME	LE	1
AGREEM	IENT	3
PART I	RECOGNITION	3
PART I	I STAFF RIGHTS	3
1.	TO ORGANIZE	3
2.	NON DISCRIMINATION FOR ASSOCIATION ACTIVITY	4
3.	NON DISCRIMINATION	4
4.	STAFF PERSONNEL FILES	4
5.	PHYSICAL ASSAULT OF STAFF	4
	INDEMNIFICATION OF STAFF	5
7.	VACANCIES AND PROMOTIONS	5
8.	TRANSFERS	5
9.	REPRESENTATION OF STAFF/INVESTIGATORY CONFERENCES	S 6
10.	NOTICE OF STAFF BUILDING ASSIGNMENT	6
11.	CLASS SIZE (CERTIFIED STAFF)	7
	SCHOOL YEAR	7
	JUST CAUSE	7
	CERTIFIED STAFF MEMBER EVALUATION	8
	CURRICULAR ADHERENCE AND ACADEMIC FREEDOM	10
	II ASSOCIATION RIGHTS	11
	MEETINGS	11
	USE OF DISTRICT EQUIPMENT	11
	USE OF BULLETIN BOARDS	11
	USE OF DISTRICT MAIL SERVICE	11
	RECEIPT OF BOARD AGENDA AND BOARD PACKET	11
	RECEIPT OF BOARD MINUTES	12
	MATERIAL FOR NEGOTIATIONS	12
	AVAILABILITY OF STAFF NAMES	12
	CALENDAR COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP	12
	PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS	12
	V LEAVES	13
1.		13
2.		15
3.		16
	PARENTAL LEAVE FOR STAFF (CHILDBIRTH/ADOPTION)	17
5.	UNPAID PARENTAL LEAVE FOR BIRTH/ADOPTION FOR	
٥.	CERTIFIED STAFF MEMBERS	17
7.	SABBATICAL LEAVE FOR CERTIFIED STAFF	20
8.	JURY DUTY FOR STAFF	20
9.		20
10.		21
PART		22
1.	DEFINITIONS	22
2.	PROCEDURE	22
3.	OTHER PROCEDURES AND PRINCIPLES	23
J.	O TILLY I ROOM OTHOUGH TO THE THE	20

PART VI NEGOTIATIONS PROCEDURES	24
PART VII COMPENSATION AND RELATED PROVISIONS	25
1. SALARY	25
2. FLEXIBLE BENEFIT PLAN FOR STAFF	26
3. LIFE INSURANCE FOR STAFF	27
4. FLEXIBLE SPENDING BENEFIT PLAN CONTRIBUTION FOR CE	RTIFIED
STAFF	27
LONG TERM DISABILITY INSURANCE FOR STAFF	27
6. PAYMENT OF THIRD PARTY ADMINISTRATOR 403(b) SERVICE	FEE FOR
STAFF	27
7. SUPPLEMENTAL JOBS	28
8. TUITION REIMBURSEMENT	29
9. HIGH NEED ENDORSEMENT STIPEND	30
PART VIII RETIREMENT BENEFITS FOR CERTIFIED STAFF	31
 SALARY ENHANCEMENT RETIREMENT PLAN 	31
2. DISCRETIONARY SICK LEAVE GIFTS	35
3. FRINGE BENEFITS	35
4. GENERAL PROVISIONS	36
PART IX TEACHER ASSOCIATES	36
PART X SPECIAL EDUCATOR WORKLOAD	36
PART XI DISTRICT AND BUILDING COMMUNICATION COUNCILS	37
 DISTRICT AND BUILDING COMMUNICATION COUNCILS 	37
2. COMMITTEE COUNCIL	37
PART XII SAVINGS CLAUSE	38
APPENDIX A: CERTIFIED STAFF MEMBERS' SALARY SCHEDULE	39
APPENDIX B: CERTIFIED STAFF MEMBERS' SALARY SCHEDULE	40
APPENDIX C: NON-CERTIFIED STAFF MEMBERS' COMPENSATION	43
APPENDIX D:CERTIFIED STAFF MEMBER STIPEND LIST	46
APPENDIX E: PROMISSORY NOTE	48
APPENDIX F: NEW CERTIFIED STAFF PLACEMENT	49
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING	50

PREAMBLE

This Preamble describes the core values of child-centered education, democracy, and mutual cooperation that the parties to this agreement subscribe to and hold dear. In doing so, it outlines the shared goals and objectives that we strive to achieve.

The Board of Education, the Administration, the Winnetka Education Association and the Staff of School District 36, Winnetka, Illinois, acknowledge that we are a dynamic community of learners committed to respecting childhood, challenging the intellect, nurturing creativity, fostering reflection, encouraging action, and exploring possibilities for the future. We believe that a developmental, child-centered approach to education is the most effective way to meet the needs of our students and the high level of expectations we set for them. We are guided by a set of beliefs embedded in a culture that honors tradition, reflects on transitions, and makes choices about transformations.

Our ultimate aim is to provide the best possible education for the children of Winnetka. Central to the tradition of education in Winnetka is the belief that excellence is best served by a process of our continuous and cooperative effort in an atmosphere of mutual trust and respect. To that end, the Board and the Administration have and will maintain meaningful involvement of the Staff in the process of formulating the development of educational policy in the District, the establishment of educational goals, and the allocation of available resources to those goals. We shall work together to maintain an environment where time, workload and professionalism are respected, where members of the District are treated equitably, and where decisions are made through procedures that are widely understood, transparent, consistent with our progressive and democratic traditions, and well communicated.

We believe that communication, the interchange of knowledge, ideas, criticism, and advice in all of its diverse forms, are the bonds that hold the fragile elements of democracy together. The absence of any single constituency diminishes the forces that make democracy work. The critical balance between the needs of the individual and the good of the whole is put in perspective by constant communication among all stakeholders. Therefore, each individual has the responsibility to listen, encourage, and impart ideas. Each individual also has the right to be heard respectfully. In a democracy, individuals are encouraged to interpret and analyze, ask questions, challenge, make choices, think reflectively, and collaborate with others.

We believe that when students work with and learn from individuals of character and intellect, they interact with role models whom they may wish to emulate. Therefore, allocating time for learning is as important for teachers as for children. The District is committed to addressing the educational needs and interests of its Staff as well as the educational needs and interests of children.

We believe that a school district's identity is defined by how it responds to changes in our modern world. The value of this philosophy is how we organize our educational culture. This living philosophy embodies a continuous process of change that is both unpredictable and constant. It assumes that many of the beliefs that we hold today are tentative and partial and that they may require rethinking tomorrow in light of new information and insight.

It is also recognized that the preservation and further development of educational excellence in the Winnetka Public Schools requires many intangible contributions from each of us. While the agreement that follows sets forth some of the ways and means by which the parties will maintain cooperation in pursuit of their mutual goals, other important aspects of the professional educational effort are more appropriately pursued in a collegial atmosphere. In consequence, we do commit ourselves to a process and a spirit of cooperative endeavor significantly in excess of the arrangements that are here set down. That commitment, will in the future, be the true measure of the success of public education in Winnetka, just as it has been for decades past.

AGREEMENT

The Board of Education of School District 36, Cook County, Winnetka, Illinois (the Board), and the Winnetka Education Association (the Association), hereby agree as follows:

PART I RECOGNITION

The Board hereby recognizes the Winnetka Education Association as the sole and exclusive negotiating agent for all regularly employed, certificated teaching personnel of the Winnetka Public Schools, including, resource center teachers, school psychologists, and school nurse (hereinafter "Certified Staff"); and all regularly employed non-certified associates, and entrance monitors (hereinafter "Non-Certified Staff"). The Board also acknowledges the affiliation of the Winnetka Education Association with the Illinois Education Association and the National Education Association. The Certified Staff and Non-Certified Staff shall not include the Superintendent, Assistant Superintendent of Personnel and Educational Programming, Director of Curriculum, Chief Financial Officer/CSBO, Director of Technology, Director of Student Services, Executive Assistant to the Superintendent and School Board, Administrative Assistant to the Director of Technology and the Director of Curriculum, Administrative Assistant to the Chief Financial Officer/CSBO, Administrative Assistant to the Assistant Superintendent, Administrative Assistant to the Director of Student Services, Accounts Payable, Benefits Coordinator, Bookkeeper, Payroll, Receptionist, Human Resources Assistant, School Secretaries, Registered Nurses, Informational and Database Coordinator, Network Coordinator, Tech Support Coordinator, Web Coordinator, Communications Coordinator, Director of Buildings and Grounds, HVAC Supervisor, Publications Director, "On-Deck" Before- and After-School Child Care Program Director, District Caterer and other central office staff, principals, short-term personnel, interim principals acting under administrative contract, other paraprofessionals including, but not limited to, registered nurses, substitute teachers, and other positions not specifically described which include significant responsibility for faculty supervision; and other supervisory, managerial, confidential, and short-term employees as defined under the Illinois Educational Labor Act.

During the term of this agreement, the Board will negotiate only with the Association regarding matters covered herein.

The term "Staff" is used herein to refer to all Certified and Non-Certified staff for which recognition has been granted.

PART II STAFF RIGHTS

1. TO ORGANIZE

The Staff shall have the right to organize, join, and assist the Association, and to participate in professional negotiations with the Board, through representatives of their own choosing.

2. NON DISCRIMINATION FOR ASSOCIATION ACTIVITY

The Board shall not discriminate against any member of the Staff by reason of his/her membership in the Association, his/her participation in any authorized activities of the Association, or in negotiations with the Board.

3. NON DISCRIMINATION

The Board and the Association affirm their continued support of a policy of non-discrimination on account of race, religion, color, nationality, gender, sexual orientation, marital status, age, or disability in accordance with prevailing law. This provision shall not preclude the Board from adopting policy, rules or regulations with respect to these matters provided such may supplement, but shall not be inconsistent, with this Agreement.

4. STAFF PERSONNEL FILES

As of July 1, 1984, no material of any evaluative nature will be placed in the personnel file of any member of the Staff without the member of the Staff receiving a copy marked with the date of the Staff member's receipt at a conference with the Superintendent, principal, or designee.

Staff may request removal of evaluative material from the personnel file. Such material shall be removed no earlier than one calendar year from the date of receipt of request and only upon the mutual agreement of the individual Staff member and the Superintendent. Material entered before July 1, 1984, shall be eligible for removal upon mutual agreement of the individual Staff member and Superintendent no earlier than one calendar year from date of filing.

Staff shall be permitted to write a rebuttal to any evaluative material placed in the Staff member's personnel file provided the Staff member shall do so within thirty (30) calendar days of having first become aware of such material.

5. PHYSICAL ASSAULT OF STAFF

Any case of physical assault upon a Staff member shall be promptly reported to the Superintendent or his/her designee. Per Board policy 8:30 titled "Visitors to and Conduct on School Property", the Board shall render all necessary assistance to the Staff member and law enforcement agencies in the investigation of such incident.

If the Staff member is at the time of the physical assault acting in such manner as to meet the test of job relatedness under the workers' compensation law, then the salary of the Staff member shall be continued until the time for payment of workers' compensation begins, and any absence due to illness caused by such physical assault shall not be deducted from the Staff member's sick leave allotment.

6. INDEMNIFICATION OF STAFF

The Board acknowledges its responsibility under state law to defend and provide for the indemnification of Staff members arising from the performance of their duties within the lawful scope of their employment.

7. VACANCIES AND PROMOTIONS

The Superintendent or designee shall have posted in all school buildings a notice of all vacancies in permanent teaching or administrative positions and non-certified bargaining unit positions as they occur. Such notice shall be accompanied by a statement of minimum qualifications and anticipated salary range. If a vacancy occurs during summer vacation, notice thereof shall be emailed or, if so requested, mailed to the President of the Association or designee and to any Staff member who requests such notice and who leaves with the Superintendent or designee an addressed, stamped envelope in which the notice is to be mailed.

Under ordinary circumstances, teaching vacancies shall be permanently filled only after the elapse of eight (8) calendar days from the date of posting and/or mailing. Likewise, in the case of administrative positions, such vacancies shall be permanently filled only after the elapse of fifteen (15) calendar days from the date of posting and/or mailing. However, under compelling circumstances as determined by the District, teaching or administrative vacancies may be filled without posting or, if posted, without the required posting period provided the Superintendent or designee notifies the Association President of the nature of the compelling circumstance and the name of the appointee prior to public notification.

8. TRANSFERS

- (A) Any Certified Staff member who has tenure, or who is eligible for tenure in the next school year, and any Non-Certified Staff member with at least four (4) years of full-time continuous service in the School District, may submit a written request to the Director of Human Resources for voluntary transfer to another school building where a vacancy exists, or to another assignment within his/her present building. If the Certified Staff member's request is denied, the Certified Staff member shall have the right to a conference with the administrator responsible for the decision in order to be advised of and to discuss the reasons for the denial.
- (B) The Board of Education and the Winnetka Education Association agree, that whenever possible, an involuntary transfer should be avoided and should occur only, when in the Board's judgment, the welfare of the District requires it. Recognizing the importance of a sufficient amount of time to prepare for a new assignment, all involuntary transfers of Certified Staff members will be made prior to July 10 and all involuntary transfers of Non-Certified Staff members will be made prior to August 10, except where special circumstances and District welfare force a later decision.

For the purposes of this section, special circumstances shall exist under conditions such as, but not limited to:

- 1. To meet the educational needs of a student or students.
- 2. An increase or decrease in enrollment.
- 3. Late resignations, leaves, illnesses, accidents, or deaths,
- 4. A disruption of facility use such as:
 - A. Fire
 - B. Accident
 - C. School Closing
- 5. A program change that requires reassignment

A Certified Staff member who has received notice of an involuntary transfer shall have the right to resign rather than accept the transfer. Any Certified Staff member who has been involuntarily transferred to another school building and files an application for transfer back to the former school building within ten (10) months of the effective date of such transfer, shall have the involuntary transfer considered as an important favorable factor in such application.

9. REPRESENTATION OF STAFF/INVESTIGATORY CONFERENCES

Any Staff member who has been requested to appear before the Board, any Board committee or any administrative agent acting on behalf of the Board for an investigatory interview for which a person would reasonably believe discipline may result, or concerning the continuation of that Staff member in his/her employment, shall be given reasonable prior written notice of the reason for such appearance, including notice of right to representation, and shall at his/her option be permitted to have a representative of the Association present. Notice of such requests and the holding of investigatory conferences shall not occur, if at all avoidable, until after teaching hours in a regular school day when students are not present, unless an emergency exists in the judgment of the administration.

10. NOTICE OF STAFF BUILDING ASSIGNMENT

Every tenured Certified Staff member shall be given written notice of his/her building assignment for the following school year on or before June 12 and Non-Certified Staff members shall be given written notice via email and US Postal Service for the following school year on or before August 10. Any change in the building assignment from that specified in the notice shall be promptly conveyed to the tenured Certified Staff member or Non-Certified Staff member.

Changes in a Certified Staff member's building assignment shall not be made after July 10, except in the event of special circumstances, but the decision of the Board as to the

existence of such special circumstances and any change in assignment made as a result thereof shall not be the subject of a grievance. Any tenured Certified Staff member whose building assignment is changed after July 10 may require an explanation from the Board, but the contents of such explanation shall not be the subject of a grievance.

It is understood that the purpose of this provision is to provide each tenured Certified Staff member and Non-Certified Staff members with the assurance of fair notice of building assignment and to provide tenured Certified Staff members with an opportunity to discuss the matter with the Board and the Superintendent, and it is not intended that the Board's absolute right to make such building assignments as may be deemed appropriate to the provision of consistent quality education in the District shall be abridged in any way.

11. CLASS SIZE (CERTIFIED STAFF)

The Board and the Association acknowledge that it is desirable to maintain appropriate class size, consonant with effective instructional practices.

12. SCHOOL YEAR

The school year shall provide One Hundred Eighty Seven (187) days inclusive of five (5) emergency days and no more than 176 student attendance days. The remaining six (6) days shall be professional development days unless mutually agreed otherwise. Two (2) of the six (6) professional development days will be held the two days prior to the first student attendance day.

The 187-day school year as noted above may be increased by up to two (2) non-student attendance days in any school year during the term of this agreement upon the mutual agreement of the Board and Association. If the Board and Association mutually agree to add such two (2) additional non-student attendance days in any school year during the term of this agreement, the parties shall also agree on how these two (2) days will be used and each Certified Staff member shall be paid at the per diem rate of 1/182 of his/her annual salary as shown in Appendices A and B in addition to the Certified Staff member's regular salary.

13. JUST CAUSE

Tenured and Non-tenured Certified Staff members shall not be suspended without pay without just cause.

Non-Certified Staff. There shall be a probationary period of two (2) full consecutive school years in a full-time position for Non-Certified staff members beginning the first day of work in the District. For purposes of this provision, a full school year shall be in accordance with the "120 day rule" specified in IL School Code. Non-probationary Non-Certified Staff members shall not be suspended without pay or dismissed without just cause. A probationary Non-Certified Staff member may be suspended without pay

and/or dismissed for any reason during the probationary period and such suspension without pay and/or dismissal shall not be subject to the grievance procedure.

14. CERTIFIED STAFF MEMBER EVALUATION

The parties agree that this Article shall be construed in accordance with the *Illinois School Code* and the rules and regulations of the Illinois State Board of Education, including as such may be amended by law from time to time. The parties' respective rights regarding negotiations of the *Teacher Evaluation Performance Plan* shall be governed by the *Illinois Educational Labor Relations Act* and prevailing court decisions. Please refer to a copy of the *Teacher Supervision and Evaluation Plan* for complete details of the Plan. The Plan document shall not be considered part of this Agreement except for the provisions noted below.

A. Written Notice

Within reasonable proximity to the start of the school term (i.e., the first day students are required to be in attendance), the school district shall provide a written notice (either electronic or paper) that a performance evaluation will be conducted in that school term to each teacher affected or, if the affected teacher is hired after the start of the school term, then no later than 30 days after the contract is executed. The written notice shall include:

- 1. A copy of the rubric (e.g., The Framework for Teaching) to be used to rate the teacher against identified standards and goals and other tools to be used to determine a performance evaluation rating;
- 2. A summary of the manner in which measures of student growth and professional practice to be used in the evaluation relate to the performance evaluation ratings of "Excellent", "Proficient", "Needs Improvement", and "Unsatisfactory" as set forth in Sections 24A5(e) of the School Code; and
- 3. A summary of the District's procedures related to the provision of professional development or remediation in the event a teacher receives a "Needs Improvement" or "Unsatisfactory" rating, respectively, to include evaluation tools to be used during the remediation period.

B. Evaluation Cycle Requirements

The plan shall provide for an evaluation at least once every three years of each teacher in contractual continued service (i.e., tenured) who received an "excellent" or "proficient" on his/her prior summative evaluation; however, a tenured teacher who has obtained a "needs improvement" or "unsatisfactory" rating on the previous year's evaluation shall be evaluated in the next school year

after receiving that rating, with such evaluation shall be completed by May 15. A minimum of two (2) observations, one of which is formal, as described below, shall be conducted before May 1. All summative evaluations for tenure teachers, in a normal evaluation cycle, shall be completed by May 15.

The plan shall provide that each "excellent" or "proficient" tenured teacher is informally observed at least once in the course of two school years after receipt of the rating.

The plan shall provide for an evaluation at least once every year of each teacher not in contractual continued service (i.e., non-tenured). The summative evaluation for all non-tenured teachers shall be completed by April 1 annually.

C. Required Components of the Evaluation Process

1. Pre-Observation Conference

Each formal observation shall be preceded by a conference between the qualified evaluator and the teacher.

2. Formal Observation

Teacher submits in advance of conference a written lesson or unit plan and/or other evidence of planning for instruction to be observed. Evaluator may discuss and make recommendations for areas of focus during the observation. The observation must be a minimum of 45 minutes at a time, or a complete lesson, or during an entire class period. The evaluator provides feedback following a formal evaluation to the teacher in writing (electronic or paper).

3. Informal Observation

No Pre-Conference requirements or observation requirements are defined. The evaluator provides feedback to the teacher either orally or in writing (electronic or paper), but it must be in writing, within ten (10) teacher employment days following the observation, if it is to be included in the summative evaluation. The Evaluator must provide the Teacher an opportunity to have an in person discussion following an informal observation if the Teacher so requests.

4. Post-Observation Conference

Following a formal observation, the evaluator shall meet with the teacher to discuss the evidence collected about the teacher's professional practice. The Evaluator shall meet with the Teacher to discuss evidence collected and provide feedback within ten (10) teacher employment days following the observation. Teacher may provide additional information or explanation about the lesson

presented.

The parties further recognize that the law (i.e., The Illinois School Code, The Illinois Educational Labor Relations Act, ISBE rules and regulations and related court or administrative agency decisions) continues to evolve regarding faculty evaluations. Therefore, the parties acknowledge that if any portion of this Agreement regarding evaluation is determined to be contrary to the law, the law shall prevail, with the understanding that if any such changes in the law contain "grandfather" rights provisions, such grandfather rights shall be considered part of this Agreement unless mutually agreed otherwise. If any changes in the law regarding evaluation allow the parties' discretion, the parties agree that the procedural aspects of the evaluation plan and process shall be considered mandatory subjects of bargaining but that the substantive components of the plan or process shall be permissive subjects of bargaining unless mandatory by law or prohibited by law. In the event that the Illinois legislature amends the School Code to delete the requirement that student/growth/professional practice data be considered as a factor in evaluating teacher performance, the Board and Association agree that the evaluation committee will meet to review the evaluation plan and provide input as to suggested revisions to the substantive components of the evaluation plan pertaining to student growth/professional practice but that such input shall be advisory only. The Board shall still be obligated to bargain over the impact on wages, hours and terms and conditions of employment.

D. Group 4 Alternative Definition for Reduction In Force

In the event of a reduction in force, teachers who received "excellent" ratings on their last two evaluations or who received "excellent" and "proficient" ratings on their last two evaluations or who received "proficient" ratings on their last two evaluations will be included in Group 4 and shall be honorably dismissed based on seniority.

15. CURRICULAR ADHERENCE AND ACADEMIC FREEDOM

The Winnetka Public Schools District 36 is a learning community rooted in Progressive Education that honors the whole child, fosters creativity, inspires lifelong learning, and develops civic responsibility. It is a mutual desire of the Board and the teachers to create and maintain a climate in which teachers are supported in their professional practice to deliver instruction consistent with the Board approved curriculum and students are free to learn at their levels of comprehension; a climate conducive to open inquiry and responsible discussion. The Board acknowledges that teachers shall be given a degree of academic freedom in respect to the day-to-day sequence, selection/use of materials, and instructional activities provided such academic freedom is exercised in a manner that promotes the District's educational objectives and which is consistent with the grade level curriculum as defined by the Board. Teachers may present materials on opposing sides of an issue, but will do so with the commitment to discuss them in a scholarly and objective manner, emphasizing critical thinking and respect, while remaining within the limits of

appropriate pedagogical discretion and propriety and keeping in line with the District's academic standards.

In the event there is a lack of clarity or occasion for dispute regarding the degree of academic freedom given to the Association and its members, the matter shall first be reviewed with the teacher by the building principal. If requested by the teacher, further review will occur with the Director of Innovation, Teaching and Learning. Any further review, if requested by the teacher, will occur with the Superintendent. This Section 15 shall not be subject to arbitration.

PART III ASSOCIATION RIGHTS

1. MEETINGS

The Association shall have the right to hold a reasonable number of meetings before or after school on school property in such manner as will not interfere with other school programs. Any additional expense caused by such meetings shall be borne by the Association.

2. USE OF DISTRICT EQUIPMENT

The Association shall have the right to a reasonable use of District equipment solely for Association business in such manner as will not interfere with other school programs. The expense of such use, including supplies, materials, repairs and replacement resulting from obvious misuse, shall be borne by the Association. Ordinarily, Association use of District equipment shall be authorized by the administrator responsible upon prior request by the Association. The Board shall provide two filing cabinets for Association use to be housed in a school building chosen by the Association.

3. USE OF BULLETIN BOARDS

The principal of each school shall designate a bulletin board in his/her school on which the Association shall have the right to post notices pertaining to matters with which it is directly concerned.

4. USE OF DISTRICT MAIL SERVICE

The Association shall have the right to use school mailboxes, e-mail (in accordance with District policy), and the inter-school mail distribution service to distribute a reasonable amount of communications related to Association affairs.

5. RECEIPT OF BOARD AGENDA AND BOARD PACKET

A copy of the agenda and board packets for all regular and special meetings of the Board, excluding any and all documents which are confidential or otherwise restricted from

public disclosure, shall be placed in the school mailbox of the Association president at about the same time as such is delivered to members of the Board of Education.

6. RECEIPT OF BOARD MINUTES

A copy of the minutes of all Board meetings shall be placed in the school mailbox of the Association president on the next business day following their approval but, in the case of special circumstances, no later than seven days following Board approval.

7. MATERIAL FOR NEGOTIATIONS

The Board shall provide the Association, on request, a copy of regularly prepared public information for negotiations with the Association or for the processing of a grievance hereunto, such as the current annual audit, the adopted budgets, monthly financial statements for the current fiscal year, current annual financial report, register of certificated personnel and salary scattergram, provided, however, that the Association shall reimburse the Board for the expense of copy duplication. Nothing herein shall require the Board or its' staff to research, assemble, or specially prepare data.

8. AVAILABILITY OF STAFF NAMES

The Board shall make available to the Association president the names and addresses of newly hired Staff members upon request. On or before September 15th of each school year, the Director of Human Resources shall provide the Association president with the names, addresses, and District e-mail addresses of Staff hired for the then current year and a list of Staff who are no longer employed for the then current year. Both lists shall be periodically updated during the school year as changes may occur.

9. CALENDAR COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP

The Board, in the normal course of the formulation of the school calendar, agrees to consult with the Association prior to its development and adoption. This consultation shall be in the form of a calendar committee. The committee will provide a recommendation to the Board. The calendar committee shall include four (4) WEA voting designees plus no more than four (4) other voting members designated by the Superintendent.

10. PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS

(A) DUES DEDUCTION

Elected Association Dues shall be deducted for the duration of this Contract by the District payroll department.

(B) <u>CREDIT UNION</u>

The Board will remit all authorized credit union payments coincidental with regular pay periods.

PART IV LEAVES

1. SICK LEAVE

(CERTIFIED STAFF)

The accumulation of unused sick leave days shall be unlimited and shall be known as "Accumulated Sick Days."

Sick leave shall be interpreted to mean personal illness, quarantine at home, or serious illness or death in the immediate family or household, or birth, adoption, or placement for adoption. For purposes of this provision, immediate family shall include parents, spouse, domestic partner, brothers, sisters, children, foster children, grandparents, grandchildren, parents-in-law, brothers-in-law, sisters-in-law, and legal guardians.

In the event the family member is someone other than that listed in the above definition for "immediate family" (e.g., aunt, uncle, niece, nephew or others residing in the home), the staff member shall provide a written request to the District Communication Council (DCC) on a form approved by the DCC indicating the nature of the relationship, the reason for the request, the number of days requested, and the period of time the staff member intends to use such days. The DCC may request such additional information as it deems necessary to consider the request. For the purpose of this section, priority of use shall be as follows: Annual Sick Days and then Accumulated Sick Days.

For purposes of this Section, "birth" shall include not only the actual birth, but also any period of disability of the mother or child due to birth. Child-rearing leaves shall be available in accordance with the terms of Part IV, Paragraphs 4 and 5 of this Agreement and in accordance with the provisions of the District's Family and Medical Leave Policy ("FMLA").

For purposes of this Section, "adoption" and "placement for adoption" shall include those activities reasonably related and essential to the process for adoption or placement for adoption, including travel time where necessary, as further set forth in Part IV, Paragraphs 4 and 5.

- (A) Annual Sick Days. Each full-time Certified Staff member hired before June 30, 2022, will be entitled to the following annual allotment of sick leave days with full pay per school term (the "Annual Sick Days"):
 - 1. fifteen (15) days beginning years 1 through 2;
 - 2. sixty (60) days beginning years 3 through 5;
 - 3. fifteen (15) days beginning years 6 through 10;
 - 4. sixteen (16) days beginning years 11 through 20;

5. seventeen (17) days beginning year 21.

Each full-time Certified Staff member hired on or after June 30, 2022, will be entitled to the following annual allotment of sick leave days with full pay per school term (the "Annual Sick Days"):

- 1. fifteen (15) days beginning years 1 through 3;
- 2. fifty (50) days beginning year 4;
- 3. twenty (20) days beginning years 5 through 6;
- 3. fifteen (15) days beginning years 7 through 10;
- 4. sixteen (16) days beginning years 11 through 20;
- 5. seventeen (17) days beginning year 21.

Part-time Certified Staff members will be granted a prorated share of Annual Sick Days that reflects the part time work schedule of such Certified Staff member. For example, a .5 FTE Certified Staff member earns fifteen (15) .5 sick days (for District reporting) equivalent to seven and one half (7.5) full sick days (for TRS reporting).

(B) Written Statement. On or before September 15th, the Board shall furnish each Faculty member with the number of his/her available sick days.

(NON-CERTIFIED STAFF)

The accumulation of unused sick leave days shall be unlimited and shall be known as "Accumulated Sick Days."

Sick leave shall be interpreted to mean personal illness, quarantine at home, or serious illness or death in the immediate family or household, or birth, adoption, or placement for adoption. For purposes of this provision, immediate family shall include parents, spouse, domestic partner, brothers, sisters, children, foster children, grandparents, grandchildren, parents-in-law, brothers-in-law, sisters-in-law, and legal guardians.

For purposes of this Section, "birth" shall include not only the actual birth, but also any period of disability of the mother or child due to birth. Child-rearing leaves shall be available in accordance with the terms of Part IV, Paragraph 4 of this Agreement and in accordance with the provisions of the District's Family and Medical Leave Policy ("FMLA").

For purposes of this Section, "adoption" and "placement for adoption" shall include those activities reasonably related and essential to the process for adoption or placement for adoption, as further set forth in accordance with the provisions of the District's FMLA Policy.

Annual Sick Days. Each full-time Non-Certified Staff member will be entitled to the following annual allotment of sick leave days with full pay per school term (the "Annual Sick Days"):

- 1. Twelve (12) days beginning years 1 through 10;
- 2. Thirteen (13) days beginning years 11 through 15;
- 3. Fourteen (14) days beginning years 16 through 20;
- 4. Fifteen (15) days beginning with year 21.

Part-time Non-Certified Staff members will be granted a prorated share of Annual Sick Days that reflects the part time work schedule of such Non-Certified Staff member. For example, a .5 FTE Non-Certified Staff member earns fifteen (15) .5 sick days (for District reporting) equivalent to seven and one half (7.5) full sick days (for IMRF reporting).

2. SICK LEAVE BANK TO CARE FOR FAMILY MEMBERS

(CERTIFIED STAFF)

The District shall maintain a Sick Leave Bank for use by a Certified Staff member to care for a member of the Certified Staff member's family due to such family member's serious illness or serious disability. For purposes of the Sick Leave Bank, the Certified Staff member's "family" shall be defined to include parents, spouse, children, or domestic partner (as defined within the District).

Each Certified Staff member who has been employed by the District for two or more years shall be required to make an initial donation of one sick leave day to the Sick Leave Bank. The District shall match such donations. After the initial period of donation, each Certified Staff member shall be required to make an additional donation of one sick leave day to replenish the bank upon written notice from the District that the number of days in the Bank has fallen below three hundred (300) in number. Upon each such additional donation, the District shall make a matching donation.

After the first two years of employment in the District as a teacher, any such Certified Staff member who wishes to request use of days from the Bank shall provide a written request to the District Communication Council (DCC) on a form approved by the DCC indicating the reason for the request, the number of Bank days requested, and the period of time the Certified Staff member intends to use such days. The DCC may request such additional information as it deems necessary to consider the request. The total maximum number of Bank days any individual Certified Staff member may use shall not exceed forty (40) days per year in number.

For the purposes of this section, priority of use shall be as follows: Annual Sick Days, Accumulated Sick Days, then Sick Leave Bank days granted by the DCC.

The accounting, eligibility, operation and use of Bank days pursuant to this Sick Leave Bank shall be determined by the DCC provided such use shall be consistent with the terms of this Agreement.

In the event the parties determine to dissolve the Bank, the number of days remaining in the Bank shall be distributed half to the District and half to the Certified Staff on a per Certified Staff member prorated basis.

(NON-CERTIFIED STAFF)

The District shall maintain a separate Sick Leave Bank for use by a Non-Certified Staff member to care for a member of the Non-Certified Staff member's family due to such family member's serious illness or serious disability. For purposes of the Sick Leave Bank, the Non-Certified member's "family" shall be defined to include parents, spouse, children, or domestic partner (as defined within the District).

Each Non-Certified Staff member who has been employed by the District for two (2) years shall be required to make an initial donation of one sick leave day to the Sick Leave Bank. The District shall match such donations. After the initial period of donation, each Non-Certified Staff member shall be required to make an additional donation of one sick leave day to replenish the bank upon written notice from the District that the number of days in the Bank has fallen below one hundred fifty (150) in number. Upon each such additional donation, the District shall make a matching donation.

After the first two years of employment in the District as a Non-Certified Staff member, any such Non-Certified Staff member who wishes to request use of days from the Bank shall provide a written request to the District Communication Council (DCC) on a form approved by the DCC indicating the reason for the request, the number of Bank days requested, and the period of time the Non-Certified Staff member intends to use such days. The DCC may request such additional information as it deems necessary to consider the request. The total maximum number of Bank days any individual Non-Certified Staff member may use shall not exceed forty (40) days per year in number.

For the purposes of this section, priority of use shall be as follows: Annual Sick Days, Accumulated Sick Days, then Sick Leave Bank days granted by the DCC.

The accounting, eligibility, operation and use of Bank days pursuant to this Sick Leave Bank shall be determined by the DCC provided such use shall be consistent with the terms of this Agreement.

In the event the parties determine to dissolve the Bank, the number of days remaining in the Bank shall be distributed half to the District and half to the Non-Certified Staff on a per Non-Certified Staff member prorated basis.

3. PERSONAL LEAVE FOR STAFF

Three (3) full days each year without deduction from pay or sick leave shall be allowed for absence of a Staff member for the purpose of attending to personal business or sick leave. The reason for the absence need not be given, but prior approval, as far in advance as practicable, shall be obtained from the Superintendent or designee, except in the case

of an emergency. Such leave may not be taken the day before or after a school holiday, winter and spring breaks and summer vacation. Unused personal leave shall accumulate as sick leave.

4. PARENTAL LEAVE FOR STAFF (CHILDBIRTH/ADOPTION)

Staff members may use up to sixty (60) accumulated sick leave days for the birth or adoption of a child. These sixty (60) days must be used consecutively when used after childbirth except that the right to use such days will not be diminished by intervening breaks (winter/spring/summer recess) or holidays. Medical documentation will not be required for the aforementioned sixty (60) days when used after childbirth.

For purposes of adoption, the first thirty (30) days used by a staff member may be used for bonding with the child and/or reasons related to the formal adoption process prior to taking custody of the child. The first thirty (30) days need not be used consecutively once the formal adoption process is underway and will not be diminished by intervening breaks (winter/spring/summer recess) or holidays. The second thirty (30) days must be used consecutively except that the right to use such days will not be diminished by intervening breaks (winter/spring/summer recess) or holidays. The Superintendent or designee may require that the employee provide evidence that the formal adoption is underway.

A Staff member may also use his/her sick leave for disability related to the Staff member's pregnancy, or disability of the Staff member's spouse or domestic partner, if related to the spouse's or domestic partner's pregnancy. Medical documentation shall be required when using sick leave days for a disability related to the Staff member's pregnancy, or a disability of the Staff member's spouse or domestic partner, if related to the spouse's or domestic partner's pregnancy.

If spouses or domestic partners are employed by the District, they may together only use sixty (60) days of accumulated sick leave for the birth or adoption of a child (similar to the FMLA policy that provides they may only take together 12-weeks of FMLA leave for birth or adoption).

5. UNPAID PARENTAL LEAVE FOR BIRTH/ADOPTION FOR TENURED CERTIFIED STAFF MEMBERS

A tenured Certified Staff member shall be eligible for parental leave without pay on the following conditions:

(A) The Certified Staff member shall advise the Superintendent of the pregnancy and provide the estimated date of delivery or adoption. The Superintendent may request that the Certified Staff member submit updated statements from the doctor with respect to physical condition and continuing ability to perform employment duties.

- (B) Application for such leave shall be made in writing to the Superintendent at least ninety (90) calendar days before the estimated birth date or adoption date of the child. Failure to make timely application shall cause the Certified Staff member to forfeit the right to parental leave beyond that to which he/she is entitled to under the Family Medical Leave Act.
- (C) Unpaid parental leave shall not exceed the balance of the school year in which it commences plus an additional school year. In the interest of preserving the continuity of instruction, a Certified Staff member on parental leave shall return to full employment only at the beginning of a school year, unless some other return date is mutually agreed to or in compliance with the *Family Medical Leave Act*. A Certified Staff member granted such leave shall give written notice of the intention to return, such notice to be given on or before February 1 of the previous school year or at such other time as may be directed by the Board at the time such leave is granted. Failure to give such notice or failure of the Certified Staff member to return to full time employment upon the expiration of the leave period determined for her/his case shall be treated as an election not to return to employment and as a resignation from the District.
- (D) Except as otherwise provided by this Agreement or the law, Annual or Accumulated Sick Days shall not be applicable during the period of unpaid parental leave but previously Accumulated Sick Days (less any sick leave used in accordance with this paragraph) shall be available to the faculty member upon return to full employment at the end of the leave. This paragraph shall not preclude childbirth/adoption leave as set forth in Section Four (4) above.
- (E) Where such unpaid parental leave commences within ninety (90) school days of the end of the school year, excluding unused snow days, the Certified Staff member shall be given credit for the entire year for step advancement on the salary scale. A Certified Staff member returning to full employment at the termination of such leave shall not, except as above stated, receive credit for step advancement on the salary scale.
- (F) A Certified Staff member not eligible or not desiring unpaid parental leave, may utilize Accumulated Sick Days during any period of illness related to the pregnancy and/or to the delivery of the child. If such Certified Staff member shall have exhausted Accumulated Sick Days, he/she shall be granted a leave of absence without pay during such period of illness, not to exceed ninety (90) days, or the balance of the school term, whichever shall be the lesser.

Where a Certified Staff member fails to meet the conditions of this Section Five (5), the Board may in its sole discretion grant such leave for a period of time and upon such conditions as it alone shall determine. Failure of the Board to grant unpaid parental leave in such circumstances shall not be the subject of a grievance, nor shall the granting of such leave constitute a precedent for any other Certified Staff member.

UNPAID LEAVE OF ABSENCE FOR STAFF

The Board may in its discretion grant an unpaid leave of absence to any Staff member who has submitted a written application with the specific purposes of the leave set forth. A leave of absence without pay may, in the discretion of the Board, be granted to any Staff member for purposes which shall be specifically set forth in a written application therefore. A Certified Staff member returning to full employment after an unpaid leave of absence of one hundred twenty (120) days or more in a single school year shall not receive experience credit for the leave period. Staff members granted a leave of absence shall give written notice of their intention to return as directed by the Board at the time such leave is granted. Failure to give such notice or failure of the Staff member to return to full time employment upon the expiration of the leave period shall be treated as an election not to return to employment and as a resignation from the District. The decision of the Board shall not be the subject of a grievance, nor shall the granting of such leave constitute a precedent for any other Staff member.

(CERTIFIED STAFF EXAMPLE)

Example A: A Certified Staff member is employed on a full-time basis. During the 2022-2023 school year, he/she was on Step 5 of the salary schedule. The Certified Staff member worked the full 2022-2023 school year. The Certified Staff member took an unpaid leave of absence for the entire 2023-2024 school year and returned to full-time employment at the start of the 2024-2025 school year. Upon his/her return at the 2024-2025 school year, he/she shall be placed on Step 6 of the salary schedule because he/she will receive credit for the 2022-2023 school year that he/she worked. He/she shall not receive experience credit for the 2023-2024 school year because he/she did not work more than 120 days during that school year due to the unpaid leave of absence.

Example B: Same facts as above except that the Certified Staff member worked the first 35 school days of the 2023-2024 school year and then took a leave of absence for the remainder of the 2023-2024 school year. Because he/she worked the first 35 days of the 2023-2024 school year, he/she was placed on Step 6 at the start of the 2023-2024 school year. Upon his/her return from leave at the start of the 2024-2025 school year, he/she shall remain on Step 6 because he/she worked less than 120 days during the 2023-2024 school year.

(NON-CERTIFIED STAFF EXAMPLE)

Example C: A Non-Certified Staff member is employed on a full-time basis. During the 2022-2023 school year, he/she was paid an hourly rate of \$16.00 The Non-Certified Staff member worked the full 2022-2023 school year. For the 2023-2024 school year, the hourly rate is \$16.20. During the 2024-2025 school year, the hourly rate is \$16.40. The Non-Certified Staff

member took an unpaid leave of absence for the entire 2023-2024 school year and returned to full-time employment at the start of the 2024-2025 school year. Upon his/her return at the 2024-2025 school year, he/she shall be paid at the hourly rate of \$16.20 because he/she will receive credit for the 2022-2023 school year that he/she worked. He/she shall not receive experience credit for the 2023-2024 school year because he/she did not work more than 120 days during that school year due to the unpaid leave of absence.

Example D: Same facts as above except that the Non-Certified Staff member worked the first 35 school days of the 2023-2024 school year and then took a leave of absence for the remainder of the 2023-2024 school year. Because he/she worked the first 35 days of the 2023-2024 school year, he/she was paid \$16.20 at the start of the 2023-2024 school year. Upon his/her return from leave at the start of the 2024-2025 school year, he/she shall continue to be paid at the \$16.20 hourly rate because he/she worked less than 120 days during the 2023-2024 school year.

7. SABBATICAL LEAVE FOR CERTIFIED STAFF

Sabbatical leave may, in the discretion of the Board, be granted to any Certified Staff member upon written application therefor. Such leave shall be determined by the Board consistent with Section 5/24-6.1 of the *Illinois School Code*.

A Certified Staff member on sabbatical leave shall advance on the salary schedule as if regularly employed and shall have access to the same fringe benefits as those Certified Staff members employed full time.

8. JURY DUTY FOR STAFF

The Board shall pay the regular salary to Staff members called to serve as jurors or subpoenaed to appear as witnesses in matters other than those in which the Staff member or the Association are parties adverse to the Board.

9. ASSOCIATION LEAVE FOR STAFF

In the event that the Association desires to send representatives to local, state, or national conferences or on other business pertinent to Association affairs, six (6) days shall be available. The representatives shall be excused without loss of salary, sick leave or personal business days. A written request shall be submitted to the Superintendent or his/her designee.

10. UNPAID FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE FOR STAFF

(A) Unpaid Family and Medical Leave (FMLA Leave) For Staff – Possible Insurance Benefits.

Staff members may be entitled annually to a maximum of 12 weeks of unpaid leave (less any annual FMLA leave and/or Childbirth leave already used) for the birth of a child, to care for the newborn child within 12 months of birth or for placement of a child for adoption or foster care within 12 months of such placement. Although FMLA leave is unpaid, the Board shall continue to pay for group health insurance for the Staff member during the FMLA leave to the same degree the Board was paying for such coverage as if the Staff member were still working. Please refer to the Board's policy (5:185), rules and regulations regarding FMLA leave for the exact terms and conditions for use of such FMLA leave.

(B) Unpaid Disability Leave for Staff.

In the event a Staff member suffers a personal illness or disability in connection with pregnancy and the personal illness or disability continues beyond all available paid leave and FMLA leave, the Staff member may be entitled to a maximum 90 day unpaid leave of absence and, if necessary, may request an additional unpaid disability leave of absence. The granting or denying of leave beyond the 90 day leave mentioned above shall be within the sole discretion of the Board and shall be subject to the Board's right to require medical certification. Please refer to Part IV 7 of this Agreement for the terms and conditions for an unpaid leave of absence.

(C) Unpaid Child-Rearing Leave Certified Staff – Tenured Entitlement – Non-Tenured Discretionary.

Subject to the terms and conditions of the District's FMLA policy, Certified members may be entitled annually to a maximum of twelve (12) weeks of unpaid leave for the birth of a child, to care for the newborn child within twelve (12) months of birth or for placement of a child for adoption or foster care within twelve (12) months of such placement. Although FMLA leave is unpaid, the Board shall continue to pay for group health insurance for the Certified Staff member during the FMLA leave to the same degree the Board was paying for such coverage as if the faculty member were still working.

PART V GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

1. DEFINITIONS

- (A) Any claim by the Association or a Staff member that there has been a violation, misinterpretation or misapplication of this agreement shall be a grievance.
- (B) The term "days" in this part shall mean Certified Staff employment days for Staff grievances, except that when a grievance is submitted less than ten (10) such days before the last day of classes at the end of the term. Time limits shall include all calendar days in order that the matter may be resolved before the close of the school year or as soon thereafter as possible. The number of days mentioned at each level shall be considered as maximum, but such maximums may be extended by mutual agreement.

2. PROCEDURE

The parties hereto acknowledge that it is usually most desirable to resolve all problems through free and informal communications in a spirit of mutual trust and good will. Nothing contained in this part shall be construed as limiting the right of any Staff member of the Association having a complaint to discuss the matter informally with any appropriate member of the Administration, so long as the adjustment is not inconsistent with the terms of this Agreement. If, however, such informal processes fail to satisfy the Staff member of the Association, as the case may be, a formal grievance may be processed only as follows:

- STEP 1 The Staff member of the Association shall file the grievance in writing with the supervisor immediately involved (usually the building principal), and such supervisor shall arrange for a meeting within ten (10) employment days thereafter to discuss the grievance. The written grievance shall state the nature of the grievance, shall identify the specific clause or clauses of this agreement allegedly violated, and shall state the remedy requested. The filing of the grievance at this step must be within twenty (20) employment days from the date of the occurrence. The supervisor who has authority to make a decision on the grievance shall make such a decision and communicate it in writing with the rationale therefore to the grievant within nine (9) employment days after the meeting.
- STEP 2 In the event a grievance has not been satisfactorily resolved in STEP 1, the grievant may file within six (6) employment days after receipt of the STEP 1 answer or within eight (8) days of the STEP 1 meeting, whichever is later, a copy of the grievance with the Superintendent. Within six (6) employment days after his/her receipt of such copy, the Superintendent shall meet with the grievant and other relevant persons whom the parties agree to have present in an attempt to resolve the grievance. The

Superintendent shall make a decision and communicate it and the rationale in writing to the grievant and the Association and the STEP 1 supervisor within six (6) employment days of the meeting.

STEP 3 If the Association is not satisfied with the disposition of the grievance at STEP 2, or the time limit expires without the issuance of the Superintendent's written decision, the Association may submit the grievance to binding arbitration. The arbitration proceeding shall be conducted by an arbitrator to be selected by the parties from lists supplied by the American Arbitration Association or another mutually acceptable impartial source of such lists. If a demand for arbitration is not filed within twenty (20) calendar days of the Superintendent's written decision in STEP 2, or within twenty (20) calendar days of the expiration of the time limit for such decision where none is timely communicated to the Association, the grievance shall be considered withdrawn.

- (A) The decision of the arbitrator will be binding on the parties.
- (B) The arbitrator shall have no power to alter the terms of this agreement or to amend, modify, nullify, ignore or add to the provisions of this agreement. His/her authority shall be strictly limited to deciding only the issue or issues presented to him/her in writing by the Board and the Association, and his/her decision must be based solely on his/her interpretation of the meaning or application of the express relevant language of this Agreement.
- (C) Each party shall bear the full cost for its representation and expenses in the arbitration. The cost of the arbitrator and the referring organization shall be divided equally between the parties.
- (D) If either party requests a transcript of the proceedings, that party shall bear the full cost of that transcript. If both parties order a transcript, the cost of the two transcripts shall be divided equally between the parties.

If the grievant and the Superintendent agree, STEP 1 of this procedure may be bypassed and the grievance brought directly to STEP 2.

3. OTHER PROCEDURES AND PRINCIPLES

- (A) Every Staff member shall have the right to present grievances in accordance with these procedures.
- (B) Any Staff member has the right to be represented at STEPS 1 and 2 in this procedure by another Staff member of his/her choice and at STEP 3 by any person

- of his/her choice, and no Staff member shall be required to discuss his/her formal grievance without such representation.
- (C) Where a Staff member is not represented by the Association and the Association is not represented in the formal grievance procedure, the Association will be notified in writing at each step of the disposition of the grievance, which disposition shall not be in conflict with any of the terms of this Agreement. Any final disposition of a formal grievance which is alleged by the Association to be in conflict with this Agreement shall be grievable by the Association.
- (D) Meetings, conferences and hearings under this procedure shall be conducted at a time and place which will afford a fair and reasonable opportunity for all persons, including witnesses entitled to be present, to attend and will be held, insofar as possible, after regular school hours or during non-teaching time of the personnel involved. When such meetings, conferences and hearings are held during school hours by mutual consent of all parties involved, all personnel whose presence is required shall be excused from their assignments for that purpose without loss of pay or benefits.
- (E) All documents dealing with the processing of a grievance shall be filed separately from the personnel files of the participants.
- (F) Neither the Association nor any Staff member may file or continue to present any grievance under this procedure where the grievant and the issue or issues are substantially equivalent to the complaining party and the issue or issues involved in a proceeding by the Association or such Staff member before any court, commission or other governmental body.
- (G) A formal grievance may be withdrawn prior to a decision at STEP I without establishing a precedent.
- (H) No reprisals of any kind shall be taken by the Board or Administration against any Staff member because of his/her participation in the grievance procedure.
- (I) Neither the Board nor the Association shall be permitted to assert any grounds or evidence before an arbitrator without disclosing the same to the other party sufficiently in advance as to allow time for rebuttal.

PART VI NEGOTIATIONS PROCEDURES

1. Representatives of the Board and the Association will negotiate with each other in periodic meetings to begin no later than the beginning of April of each year in which this agreement or part thereof terminates, and such negotiations shall deal with salaries, fringe benefits, any matter contained in this agreement, any other matters specifically agreed upon by the parties, except that where only a part of the agreement terminates, negotiations shall be limited to such part.

- 2. During negotiations, agreed upon material (tentative agreements) shall be prepared for the Board and the Association and signed prior to the adjournment of the meeting at which such agreement was reached or as soon thereafter as practicable.
- 3. Both parties agree that it is their mutual responsibility to confer upon their respective representatives the necessary power and authority to make proposals, consider proposals, make counter-proposals, and to reach tentative agreements. When the Association and the Board reach tentative agreement on all matters being negotiated, the items will be put in writing and shall be submitted to the membership of the Association for ratification and to the Board for official approval.
- 4. If tentative agreement on all matters being negotiated has not been reached by June 15 or if the Association has not ratified or the Board not approved a tentative agreement within thirty (30) days of its submission for such action, either party may declare to the other in writing that an impasse exists.
- 5. When an impasse has been declared, the Federal Mediation Service will be requested by the parties to assign a mediator in accordance with its policies. If a mediator is not available from the Federal Mediation Service, then the parties shall choose a mutually acceptable mediator from another source. The mediator shall meet with the parties or their representatives, or both, forthwith, either jointly or separately, or both, and shall take such steps as he/she may deem appropriate to persuade the parties to resolve their differences. The mediator shall not, without the consent of both parties, make finding of fact or recommend terms of settlement. The mediator shall not make public any recommendations or the positions of the parties without the express, written consent of both parties.
- 6. Any costs for the mediator shall be borne equally by the Association and the Board.
- 7. Notwithstanding all of the above of Part VI, the parties may mutually agree to engage in alternative models of collective bargaining.

PART VII COMPENSATION AND RELATED PROVISIONS

1. SALARY

(CERTIFIED STAFF)

(A) BA Salary for faculty members for the 2022-2023 through 2026-2027 school years shall be as set forth in the salary schedules attached hereto and incorporated in this Agreement as Appendix A. MA Salary and beyond for 2022-2023 through 2026-2027 school years shall be as set forth in the salary schedules attached hereto and incorporated in this Agreement as Appendix B.

(B) Payment To Teacher's Retirement System and Teacher Health Insurance Security Fund.

From the compensation schedule, the Board shall deduct and remit for each Certified Staff member from the amount due such Certified member pursuant to the compensation schedules to the State of Illinois Teachers Retirement System (TRS) an amount equal to the required statutory TRS contribution to be applied for the retirement account of such Certified Staff member (rather than the survivors annuity account) and from the amount due such Certified Staff member pursuant to the compensation schedules to the State of Illinois Teacher Health Insurance Security Fund (THIS) an amount equal to the required statutory THIS contribution. It is the intent of the parties by this agreement to qualify these payments as employer payments under Section 414 (H) of the *Internal Revenue Code*. The Certified Staff members have no right or claim to the funds so remitted except as they may subsequently become available upon retirement or resignation from the TRS or THIS.

The balance of the amount due each Certified Staff member pursuant to such compensation schedule shall be payable to the Certified Staff member as salary in installments as otherwise provided herein, provided the Board shall deduct there from all monies as required by law or as authorized by the Board. Such withholding shall include any and all additional amounts required to be paid to the State of Illinois TRS or THIS for the account of such Certified Staff member.

The Association and each Certified Staff member will indemnify and hold harmless the Board of Education, its members, its agents, and its employees from any and all claims, demands, actions, complaints, suits or other liability by reason of a faithful payment of contributions to the TRS or THIS pursuant to the provision of this section. No such claim, demand, action, or suit shall be settled or compromised in any manner without the express written consent of both parties.

(NON-CERTIFIED STAFF)

Salary for Non-Certified staff members for the 2022-2023 through 2026-2027 school years shall be as set forth in the salary schedules attached hereto and incorporated in this Agreement as Appendix C.

2. FLEXIBLE BENEFIT PLAN FOR STAFF

The Board shall establish a plan of flexible compensation for the benefit of Staff covered by this agreement which is in compliance with Section 125 of the *Internal Revenue Code of 1986*, as amended (the "Code"), and in compliance with Sections 79, 104, 105, 106, 125, 129 of the Code. Eligible Staff may elect to purchase with pre-tax dollars, the following plans maintained by the District:

- 1. Health Insurance
- 2. Term Life Insurance

- 3. Dental Insurance
- 4. Long-Term Disability Insurance
- 5. Reimbursement Uncovered Medical Expenses
- 6. Dependent Care Reimbursement
- 7. Vision Insurance

The Board agrees to the formation of a joint Board, Administration and Staff Insurance Committee whose function will be to evaluate, discuss, and advise the Board on those insurance programs included in the fringe benefit package.

The Board shall select the insurance carriers for all of the above insurance programs. Each Staff member shall select his/her insurance benefits under this provision on or before August 31 or within thirty (30) calendar days of employment, whichever is later, and such selection shall be irrevocable for the current school year.

3. LIFE INSURANCE FOR STAFF

The Board shall purchase group life insurance on each Staff member's behalf in the form of a term life insurance policy with a benefit value of \$50,000 for Certified Staff and \$10,000 for Non-Certified staff up to age 74 subject to any underwriting conditions imposed by the Board's insurance provider. Upon reaching his/her 75th birthday, the benefit value for Staff shall be reduced to one-half the benefit subject to any underwriting conditions imposed by the Board's insurance provider.

4. FLEXIBLE SPENDING BENEFIT PLAN CONTRIBUTION FOR CERTIFIED STAFF

The Board will contribute to each Certified Staff member's health flexible spending benefit account an amount equal to fifty percent (50%) of the individual Certified Staff member's premium for in-network dental insurance single coverage to be used to reimburse eligible medical expenses in accordance with the District's Section 125 plan in effect in the District. Dependent coverage will be available at the Certified Staff member's expense.

5. LONG TERM DISABILITY INSURANCE FOR STAFF

The Board shall pay an amount equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the individual Staff member's premium for long-term disability insurance in accordance with the plan in effect in the District.

6. PAYMENT OF THIRD PARTY ADMINISTRATOR 403(b) SERVICE FEE FOR STAFF

The Board will pay, on behalf of each Certified Staff member participating in the Board's 403(b) plan, the 403(b) service fee actually assessed to each Certified Staff member by the third party who administers the Board's 403(b) plan.

7. SUPPLEMENTAL JOBS

(CERTIFIED STAFF)

- (A) Payment for Supplemental Jobs shall be as described in Appendix D which shall reflect payments for 2022-2023. For 2023-2024 through 2026-2027 increases shall be a percentage equal to the percentage calculated pursuant to the *Property Tax Limitation Act* (maximum increase not to exceed 4%) for the applicable school year.
- (B) When a regular substitute is not available and, as a result, a teacher is required to relinquish planning time or is required to combine classes in order to cover a class for a fellow teacher who is absent, the teacher shall be compensated as follows:

Skokie/Washburne	Crow Island, Greeley, Hubbard Woods	
One Period	20-60 minutes	1/4 Substitute Pay
Two Periods	61-120 minutes	1/2 Substitute Pay
Three Periods	121-180 minutes	3/4 Substitute Pay
Four Periods	181-240 minutes	Full Substitute Pay

In all such cases the building principal shall be notified as soon as reasonably possible for approval.

For purposes of this provision, and to take into consideration the various school day configurations throughout the District, the term "one period" shall be defined as a Skokie or Washburne class period. In elementary school, compensation is determined by time in minutes. The periods vary in time depending on school schedule and subject. The parties agree that periods of time less than twenty (20) consecutive minutes shall not be eligible for internal substitution pay.

- (C) On or before the first day of each school year, the District shall provide Certified Staff members with written notification of the rates of compensation for the Supplemental Jobs described in Appendix D above together with the rate of compensation for internal substitution as described in paragraph B above.
- (D) No Certified Staff member shall be obligated to accept a supplemental job, but this provision shall not be construed to relate in any way to duties or compensation of a Certified Staff member's primary employment obligation.
- (E) There are two dates each year by which notification must be received in order for a Certified Staff member to move from the Bachelor's to Master's schedule. If eligibility notification is received by September 30, the pay increase will be retroactive to the first paycheck of the current school year. If notification is received by January 31, the pay increase would be pro-rated based on the January 31 date and will begin with the second paycheck in February.

(F) Either the Board of Education or the Association may call for a reopening of negotiations related to Certified Staff retirement costs and/or benefits (whether statutory, contractual, Board policy or District practice) if the State laws governing the Illinois Teachers' Retirement System change so as to affect either the Board's costs or Certified Staff benefits.

(NON-CERTIFIED STAFF)

(A) Internal Substitution. The Administration may, at its discretion, assign Non-Certified Staff members to substitute teach on any given day, provided that the Non-Certified Staff member is legally qualified to perform the duties of a substitute teacher. When a Non-Certified Staff member is removed from his/her Non-Certified position and directed during the school day that he/she is required to cover a class for a Certified Staff member who is absent, the Non-Certified Staff member shall be compensated as follows:

Time Performing as Substitute Teacher Duties	Compensation
0 to 30 minutes	Regular Hourly Rate
31 minutes or more (but less than 240 minutes)	Regular Hourly Rate + \$14 Dollars Per Hour

If a Non-Certified Staff member is notified that he/she must serve as a substitute teacher for an entire school day, the Non-Certified Staff member shall be paid at the higher of the daily Substitute Teacher rate or his/her hourly rate.

- (B) Elementary Lunchroom Coordinators: \$15.15 per hour
- (C) Pioneer Room \$11.45 per hour

8. TUITION REIMBURSEMENT

(CERTIFIED & NON-CERTIFIED STAFF)

Certified Staff members on a BA lane who have completed at least three (3) full school years of employment with the District and Non-Certified Staff members who have completed at least three (3) full school year of employment with the District are eligible for up to \$5,000.00 per year of tuition reimbursement. For a Certified Staff member, the semester hours must be for obtaining a first Master's Degree. For a Non-Certified Staff member, the semester hours must be for obtaining a Teaching Degree.

The Board shall annually budget \$65,000.00 for this tuition reimbursement program. If the cost of the number of approved semester hours exceeds \$65,000.00 in a year, the reimbursement shall be prorated by dividing \$65,000.00 by the total number of approved semester hours. For example, if requests for 300 semester hours are received at a total cost of \$75,000, the Board will divide \$65,000 by 300 which will result in employees receiving a \$216.67 reimbursement per semester hour.

In order to be eligible for tuition reimbursement, the following conditions must be met:

- (A) Must submit the request for approval to the Human Resources Department in accordance with the deadline(s) established by the Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources;
- (B) The Master's Degree or Teaching Degree program and the academic institution must be preapproved by the Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources or designee;
- (C) The time allotted to complete the necessary coursework will be jointly agreed upon by the staff member and the Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources or designee;
- (D) Courses must be for a Master's Degree program in the Certified Staff Member's discipline or in education; and
- (E) Must earn at least a "B" or a "Pass" if a course is only offered on a pass/fail basis.

Payment of the tuition reimbursement will be issued after the staff member completes the coursework and submits a receipt verifying his/her payment of the tuition. Reimbursement of tuition shall be paid on the condition that the staff member will continue to be employed with the District for at least two (2) full school years following the completion of the approved courses. At the time the reimbursement is made, the staff member shall sign an agreement promising to repay to the District the full tuition reimbursement received in the event he/she resigns from employment with the District prior to completing the two (2) full school years. For example, if the coursework was completed on December 31, 2022, of the 2022-2023 school year, the staff member must remain employed for the full 2023-2024 and 2024-2025 school years to avoid repayment.

9. HIGH NEED ENDORSEMENT STIPEND

Certified Staff members on a MA lane who have completed three (3) full school years of employment with the District and Non-Certified Staff member with an Illinois Professional Educators License (PEL) who have completed three (3) full school years of employment with the District are eligible to receive a one-time \$1,000.00 stipend for attaining a "high need" endorsement on their PEL. The District will publish annually the list of "high need" endorsements.

In order to be eligible for stipend, the following conditions must be met:

- (A) The academic institution must be preapproved by the Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources or designee;
- (B) The time allotted to complete the necessary coursework will be jointly agreed upon by the staff member and the Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources or designee; and
- (C) Must earn at least a "B" or a "Pass" if a course is only offered on a pass/fail basis.

Payment of the stipend will be issued after the staff member obtains the endorsement. The stipend shall be paid on the condition that the staff member will continue to be employed with the District for at least two (2) full school years after obtaining the endorsement. At the time the stipend is paid, the staff member shall sign an agreement promising to repay to the District the full stipend received in the event he/she resigns from employment with the District prior to completing the two (2) full school years. For example, if the endorsement was obtained on December 31, 2022, of the 2022-2023 school year, the staff member must remain employed for the full 2023-2024 and 2024-2025 school years to avoid repayment.

PART VIII RETIREMENT BENEFITS FOR CERTIFIED STAFF

Introduction

This section is intended to inform Certified Staff members of the District's Salary Enhancement Retirement Benefit Plan including eligibility requirements and monetary retirement benefits which are available to qualified Certified Staff members.

SALARY ENHANCEMENT RETIREMENT PLAN

Eligibility: A Certified Staff member becomes eligible for the District's Salary Enhancement Retirement Benefit Plan when:

(A) the Certified Staff member (a) is at least 55 years of age at the time of retirement; (b) has 20 or more years of service credit at the time of retirement; (c) has served continuously as an employee in the District for fifteen (15) years or more prior to retirement¹; and (d) obtained approval of the Board of Education after submission of timely written notification of application for retirement. An unpaid leave of absence of up to two (2) years duration shall not be deemed to interrupt such service, but any unpaid leave of absence for an entire school term shall not constitute a year of service. A year of service shall be defined as any year, full-time or part-time, as long as such service meets the minimum service requirements for creditable service under either the Illinois Teachers' Retirement System (TRS) or the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF); and

District Certified Staff who leave the employ of the District for comparable service with the Winnetka Public School Foundation, and then return to teaching service with the District, shall be considered continuously employed for the purposes of the 15 year requirement of this section.

- (B) has submitted an irrevocable written letter of resignation and an individual TRS report verifying the teacher's then known age, creditable service and creditable earnings to the Board of Education EITHER (1) by February 1 of the school year prior to the Certified Staff member's fifth, fourth, third, second, or first year in which the Certified Staff member becomes eligible to retire under Section 1.A AND eligible to retire under the provisions of TRS without an early retirement option penalty or without an early discounted annuity, OR (2) by February 1 of the school year prior to the Certified Staff member turning sixty years old, has served continuously as an employee in the District for 15 years or more, obtained approval from the Board of Education AND is eligible to retire under the provisions of TRS without an early retirement option penalty or without an early age discounted annuity. All other retirees who would otherwise qualify to receive the benefits of and retire under this Section but who choose to forego the benefit by failing to submit the requisite notices in a timely manner and/or by working beyond when they would have to retire to receive this benefit will not receive this benefit.
- (C) who must not have received an increase in creditable earnings of greater than 6% in any year preceding commencement of the salary enhancement plan which, if combined with the years of this plan, would have resulted in a TRS penalty to the District (so-called "look back")²; and
- (D) who has submitted a signed promissory note (in the form appearing as Appendix E to this Agreement) wherein the Certified Staff member promises to pay back the difference between the total salary enhancements received under this plan and the actual salary member would have received in accordance with the regular salary schedule of the District if a change in the Certified Staff member's retirement date results in any TRS penalty to the District. However, the repayment obligation will not apply if the Certified Staff member's change in retirement date is a result of the following circumstances: permanent disability, death in the immediate family, serious health condition of the Certified Staff member or serious health condition of another individual which requires the care of the Certified Staff member. Other special circumstances may be considered at the Board's discretion. For purposes of this section, the Certified Staff member's "family" shall be defined to include parents, spouse, children or domestic partner (as defined within the District). The Certified Staff member will not be responsible for repayment of the retirement incentives if the Certified Staff member's change in retirement date does not result in the District incurring a TRS monetary penalty payment obligation based upon the Certified Staff member's creditable earnings increase in excess of the TRS 6.0% annual limit. The Board reserves the right to waive this provision on a non-precedential basis.

Benefit:

This provision shall not preclude participation in this plan in any instance when the District and a Certified Staff member mutually agree to an additional assignment with the requisite compensation even though said compensation shall cause total creditable earnings to exceed six percent (6%) above the prior year's creditable earnings. If such assignment is agreed, the District shall be responsible for any excess salary contribution to the Teachers' Retirement System. Any such agreement shall be in writing with a copy to the Certified Staff member and the WEA president.

(E) Salary Enhancement Election:

1. Certified Staff Who Submit a Letter of Resignation ON OR BEFORE February 1. 2026: If eligible as described in Sections 1.A-1.D and if the letter of resignation was submitted on or before February 1, 2026, the Certified Staff member may elect to move "off schedule" and thereby receive a salary increase equal to 106% of the member's prior year's total creditable earnings (less any earnings for services not rendered to the District) in lieu of the regularly scheduled total creditable earnings. The member may make this election, if eligible, for one (1), two (2), three (3), four (4) or five (5) consecutive years provided the following:

If a Certified Staff member gives the Board an irrevocable written notice of retirement five (5) years prior to the year of retirement and five (5) years prior to becoming eligible for a non-discounted annuity as described in Section 1.B, the Board shall pay him/her a 6% retirement incentive, inclusive of all other increases in TRS creditable compensation, for each of his/her remaining five (5) years of service, less compensation for any services not rendered.

If a Certified Staff member gives the Board an irrevocable written notice of retirement four (4) years prior to the year of retirement and four (4) years prior to becoming eligible for a non-discounted annuity as described in Section 1.B, the Board shall pay him/her a 6% retirement incentive, inclusive of all other increases in TRS creditable compensation, for each of his/her remaining four (4) years of service, less compensation for any services not rendered.

If a Certified Staff member gives the Board an irrevocable written notice of retirement three (3) years prior to the year of retirement and three (3) years prior to becoming eligible for a non-discounted annuity as described in Section 1.B, the Board shall pay him/her a 6% retirement incentive, inclusive of all other increases in TRS creditable compensation, for each of his/her remaining three (3) years of service, less compensation for any services not rendered.

If a Certified Staff member gives the Board an irrevocable written notice of retirement by two (2) years prior to the year of retirement and two (2) years prior to becoming eligible for a non-discounted annuity as described in Section 1.B, the Board shall pay him/her a 6% retirement incentive, inclusive of all other increases in TRS creditable compensation, for each of his/her remaining two (2) years of service, less compensation for any services not rendered.

If a Certified Staff member gives the Board an irrevocable written notice of retirement one (1) year prior to the year of retirement and one (1) year prior to becoming eligible for a non-discounted annuity as described in Section 1.B, the Board shall pay him/her a 6% retirement incentive, inclusive of all other increases in TRS creditable compensation, for his/her remaining one (1) year of service, less compensation for services not rendered.

Once a Certified Staff member submits an irrevocable written notice of retirement before February 1 as provided above, that employee shall be removed from the salary schedules. All calculations for increased TRS creditable earnings will be based on the TRS creditable earnings in the year prior to the submission of the irrevocable written notice of retirement, less compensation for services not rendered. Once the employee submits an irrevocable written notice of retirement, in no case will the employee's TRS creditable earnings increase exceed 6% of the previous year.

2. Certified Staff Who Submit Letter of Resignation Letter AFTER February 1, 2026: If eligible as described in Sections 1.A-1.D and if the letter of resignation was submitted after February 1, 2026, the Certified Staff member may elect to move "off schedule" and thereby receive a salary increase equal to 105.5% of the member's prior year's total creditable earnings (less any earnings for services not rendered to the District) in lieu of the regularly scheduled total creditable earnings. The member may make this election, if eligible, for one (1), two (2), three (3), four (4), or five (5) consecutive years provided the following:

If a Certified Staff member gives the Board an irrevocable written notice of retirement five (5) years prior to the year of retirement and five (5) years prior to becoming eligible for a non-discounted annuity as described in Section 1.B, the Board shall pay him/her a 5.5% retirement incentive, inclusive of all other increases in TRS creditable compensation, for each of his/her remaining five (5) years of service, less compensation for any services not rendered.

If a Certified Staff member gives the Board an irrevocable written notice of retirement four (4) years prior to the year of retirement and four (4) years prior to becoming eligible for a non-discounted annuity as described in Section 1.B, the Board shall pay him/her a 5.5% retirement incentive, inclusive of all other increases in TRS creditable compensation, for each of his/her remaining four (4) years of service, less compensation for any services not rendered.

If a Certified Staff member gives the Board an irrevocable written notice of retirement three (3) years prior to the year of retirement and three (3) years prior to becoming eligible for a non-discounted annuity as described in Section 1.B, the Board shall pay him/her a 5.5% retirement incentive, inclusive of all other increases in TRS creditable compensation, for each of his/her remaining three (3) years of service, less compensation for any services not rendered.

If a Certified Staff member gives the Board an irrevocable written notice of retirement by two (2) years prior to the year of retirement and two (2) years prior to becoming eligible for a non-discounted annuity as described in Section 1.B, the Board shall pay him/her a 5.5% retirement incentive, inclusive of all other increases in TRS creditable compensation, for each of his/her remaining two (2) years of service, less compensation for any services not rendered.

If a Certified Staff member gives the Board an irrevocable written notice of retirement one (1) year prior to the year of retirement and one (1) year prior to becoming eligible for a non-discounted annuity as described in Section 1.B, the Board shall pay him/her a 5.5% retirement incentive, inclusive of all other increases in TRS creditable compensation, for his/her remaining one (1) year of service, less compensation for services not rendered.

Once a Certified Staff member submits an irrevocable written notice of retirement before February 1 as provided above, that employee shall be removed from the salary schedules. All calculations for increased TRS creditable earnings will be based on the TRS creditable earnings in the year prior to the submission of the irrevocable written notice of retirement, less compensation for services not rendered. Once the employee submits an irrevocable written notice of retirement, in no case will the employee's TRS creditable earnings increase exceed 6% of the previous year.

- (F) Except as otherwise provided, terms used herein shall have the same definition as that found in the Teachers' Retirement System of the State of Illinois. 40 ILCS 5/6-101 et seq.
- (G) Bridge to Benefits: The full benefits of this Salary Enhancement Retirement Plan shall be available to any eligible Certified Staff member who submits his/her irrevocable letter of resignation during the term of this Agreement for benefits to be received within successive years immediately following receipt of said notice regardless of the fact that some or all of the benefits of this Plan may not be due and owing until after the expiration of this Agreement (e.g., an eligible member who submits his/her irrevocable letter of resignation during the 2025-2026 school year for the five year plan shall be eligible to receive the salary enhancement for 2026-2027 through 2020-2031.)

2. DISCRETIONARY SICK LEAVE GIFTS

To the extent permitted by TRS, the Board shall retain the right to award sick leave gifts to retiring Certified Staff members if it is determined by the Board that such gifts shall be in the best financial interest of the District. The District shall be responsible for TRS sick leave gift penalties as a result of its exercise of the right to award sick leave gifts.

3. FRINGE BENEFITS

- (A) Retirees under the Salary Enhancement Retirement Benefit Plan will be allowed to enroll in the Health and Life Insurance programs of the District, or of TRS, for which they are eligible so long as the insurance carrier, if any, writing such coverage continues to approve such participation by retirees.
- (B) The cost of such health insurance coverage for retirees, shall be paid by the Board for the TRS Health and Prescription Drug Insurance Plan at the applicable rates; and for the existing District plan only in the event the employee is not eligible for the TRS plan. The total amount paid by the Board for the cost of such retiree's single membership in any health and life insurance plans shall be limited to \$3,000 on an annual basis. Such

payments shall continue for no longer than five years from the date of retirement in any case. Certified Staff members shall not have the option of receiving cash in lieu of the District's payment of health insurance premiums.

4. GENERAL PROVISIONS

Upon the death of an individual who has retired under this policy, the Board will pay the remaining payments, if any, to the retiree's designated beneficiary, or, if none is designated, to his or her estate.

PART IX TEACHER ASSOCIATES

The Board of Education agrees to employ a teacher's associate for each first grade section in the District.

PART X SPECIAL EDUCATOR WORKLOAD

Special Educator Workload

Pursuant to the Rules and Regulations of the Illinois State Board of Education (23 Illinois Administrative Code 226.735), school districts are required to adopt a plan specifying limits on the workload of its special educators. The Rules and Regulations require that each plan be developed in collaboration with its special educators and in accordance with the *Illinois Educational Labor Relations Act* (IELRA).

In accordance with the aforementioned, the parties agreed to adopt the following process for managing workload limits for special educators:

- (A) The special educator shall schedule a meeting with his/her immediate supervisor to discuss workload concerns whenever such concerns arise; and
- (B) For such scheduled meetings, the special educator shall bring the necessary data regarding workload concerns including, but not limited to, service minutes, consultation time and other duties that might be contributing to concerns over workload; and
- (C) The immediate supervisor, in consultation with the special educator, shall develop a written document of options and strategies to address such workload concerns; and
- (D) The special educator shall schedule a follow-up meeting with his/her immediate supervisor to determine whether the aforementioned options and strategies have been effective in addressing the workload concerns. If it is determined that such strategies have not been effective, the Director of Student Services shall be contacted for continued discussion and review.

PART XI DISTRICT AND BUILDING COMMUNICATION COUNCILS

1. DISTRICT AND BUILDING COMMUNICATION COUNCILS

The parties agree that on-going communication between the Board, the District Administration, the Building Administration, and the Association Leadership is important and that such communication should not wait until formal negotiations. In an effort to maximize the likelihood that such communication shall occur, the parties agree to form communication councils at both the District level and the Building level as follows:

The Superintendent and the Association President shall form the District Communication Council (DCC). The Building Principal or designee and the Association Building Representative or designee shall form the Building Communication Council (BCC). Each shall be permitted to invite one additional person as a permanent member of the Councils and others as temporary resources to the Councils. The Councils shall meet no less than once per month on a regularly scheduled date to be determined by the DCC and the BCC. Additional meetings may be scheduled by mutual agreement of the members. In the event that the Superintendent or Association President is unable to attend a regularly scheduled date, the Superintendent or Association President may determine to cancel such meeting and reschedule or, if mutually agreeable, appoint a designee to attend in his/her absence. Each Council shall appoint a respective member who shall communicate in writing with his/her counterpart prior to each meeting with respect to proposed agenda items for the upcoming meeting in an effort to assist the parties in advance preparation for discussion of any such items. These meetings shall not be considered "formal negotiations" unless the parties mutually agree. Therefore, there shall be no constraints on the topics for discussion, except to the extent required by law. The parties are encouraged to use principles of interest based problem solving where appropriate.

The Council(s) shall determine any other operational protocols except as follows: the parties agree and acknowledge that any proposed action coming from the Council(s) is subject to the right of final decision by the Board of Education to the extent provided under law and/or the bargaining rights of the Association to the extent provided under law, and to the extent either the Board or the Association elects to exercise such rights.

2. COMMITTEE COUNCIL

The parties agree to form a joint committee of members appointed by the administration and the Association for the purpose of monitoring the establishment, number, and functioning of committees throughout the District. The Committee Council shall meet by September 30th of each year, appoint co-chairs, meet a minimum of four (4) times per school year and maintain a list of active and inactive committees. While the Committee Council shall not have the right to interfere with the Board's and/or Administration's establishment of committees, it is intended to alert the Board and/or Administration to any concerns regarding the number of committees, the functioning of any committee, the interplay between any committee's work and compliance with the prevailing collective bargaining agreement, and the interplay between any committee's work and compliance with the *Illinois Educational Labor Relations Act*.

PART XII SAVINGS CLAUSE

Should any part or clause of this Agreement be declared illegal or void by a court of competent jurisdiction, then that part or clause shall be deleted from this Agreement. The remaining parts and clauses shall remain in full force and effect, if not affected by the deleted material.

This Agreement, signed this 29th day of May, 2022, shall be effective as of the first day of the 2022-2023 school year, and shall remain in effect until the day before the 2027-2028 school year.

WINNETKA EDUCATION ASSOCIATION

SECREIAKI

WINNETKA BOARD OF EDUCATION

PRESIDENT

maxie Clarke

SECRETARY

1027247_1

APPENDIX A: CERTIFIED STAFF MEMBERS' SALARY SCHEDULE B.A. DEGREE 2022-2023 through 2026-2027

	•
	1
	ı

2024-2025

∾																
202	BA	STEP	0	1	2	3	4	5	9	7	∞	6	10	11	12	13
2022-2023	SALARY	2022-2023	\$51,578	\$52,867	\$54,189	\$55,544	\$56,932	\$58,355	\$59,814	\$61,309	\$62,843	\$64,413	\$66,024	\$67,674	\$69,367	\$71.101
20	BA	STEP	0	1	2	3	4	5	9	7	8	6	10	11	12	13

. 2			 -		_	_	-	_		_	\rightarrow	$\overline{}$	\rightarrow	$\overline{}$	$\overline{}$	_
200	BA	STEP	0	1	2	3	4	5	9	7	00	6	10	11	12	13
2023-2024	SALARY	2023-2024	\$51,835	\$53,131	\$54,460	\$55,822	\$57,217	\$58,647	\$60,113	\$61,616	\$63,156	\$64,736	\$66,354	\$68,013	\$69,713	\$71,456
20	BA	STEP	0	1	2	e	4	5	9	7	∞	б	10	11	12	13

2026-2027	SALARY	2026-2027	\$52,617	\$53,932	\$55,281	\$56,663	\$ 58,079	\$59,531	\$61,020	\$ 62,546	\$64,109	\$65,711	\$67,354	\$69,038	\$70,764	\$72,533
2026	BA	STEP	o	п	2	æ	4	5	9	7	00	6	10	11	12	13
								_			_					_
2025-2026	SALARY	2025-2026	\$52.355	\$53,664	900'55\$	\$56,381	\$57,790	\$59,235	\$60,717	\$62,234	\$63,789	\$65,384	\$67,019	\$68,695	\$70,412	\$72,173
202	ВА	STEP	0	1	2	ю	4	2	9	7	00	6	10	11	12	13

\$58,941

\$60,414

\$61,924 \$63,472 \$65,059

\$56,100 \$57,503

\$52,095 \$53,397 \$54,732

2024-2025 SALARY

\$71,813

\$70,062

\$66,686

\$68,353

APPENDIX B: CERTIFIED STAFF MEMBERS' SALARY SCHEDULE MA. DEGREE 2022-2023.through 2026-2027

		2007-7003	_
MA Step	MA	WU+15	WU+30
0	\$62,980	\$64,869	\$66,490
-1	\$64,554	\$66,491	\$68,153
2	\$66,168	\$68,153	\$69,857
m	\$67.822	\$69,856	\$71,603
4	\$69,517	\$71,603	\$73,393
5	\$71,255	\$73,393	\$75,228
Sa	\$73,037	\$75,228	\$77,109
9	\$74,862	\$77,108	\$79,036
7	\$76,734	\$79,036	\$81,011
∞	\$78,652	\$ 81,011	\$83,037
9	\$80,618	\$83,037	\$85,113
10	\$82,634	\$85,113	\$87,241
10a	\$84,700	\$87,241	\$89,422
11	\$86,817	\$ 89,422	\$91,657
12	\$88,988	\$91,658	\$93,949
13	\$91,212	\$93,949	\$96,297
14	\$93,492	\$96,297	\$98,705
15	\$95,831	\$98,705	\$101,173
15a	\$98,225	\$101,172	\$103,702
16	\$ 100,682	\$103,702	\$106,295
17	\$103,199	\$106,295	\$108,952
18	\$105,779	\$108,952	\$111,676
19	\$108423	\$111,675	\$114 467
20	\$111,134	\$114,468	\$117 329
20a	\$113,912	\$117,329	\$120,263
21	\$116,760	\$120,262	\$123,269
22	\$119,679	\$123,270	\$126,351
23	\$ 122,671	\$126,351	\$129,510
24	\$125,738	\$129,510	\$132,748
1	4130 001	121	

	2023-2024	024	
Step	Σ	WU+15	WU+30
-	\$64.730	¢66 166	¢67 870
,	200,000	000,000	020,100
1	\$65,645	267,820	915,895
2	\$67 491	\$69,516	\$71,254
3	\$69,179	\$71,254	\$73,035
4	\$70,908	\$73,035	\$74,861
2	\$72,680	\$74,861	\$76,732
5a	\$74,497	\$76,732	\$78,650
9	\$76,360	\$78,651	\$80,617
7	\$78,268	\$80,616	\$82,632
00	\$80,225	\$82,632	\$84,697
6	\$82,231	\$84,697	\$86,815
10	\$84,286	\$86,815	\$88,985
10a	\$86,394	\$88,986	\$91,210
11	\$88,554	\$91,210	\$93.491
12	\$90,767	\$93,490	\$95,828
13	\$93,037	\$95,828	\$98,224
14	\$95,363	\$98,223	\$100,679
15	\$97,746	\$100,679	\$103,196
15a	\$100,191	\$103,197	\$105,776
16	\$102,695	\$105,776	\$108,420
17	\$105,263	\$108,420	\$111,131
18	\$107 895	\$111,131	\$113,910
19	\$110,592	\$113,909	\$116,757
20	\$113,356	\$116,757	\$119,676
20a	\$116,190	\$119,676	\$122,668
21	\$119 095	\$122,668	\$125,735
22	\$122,072	\$125,734	\$128,878
23	\$125,125	\$128,878	\$132,100
24	\$128,252	\$132,100	\$135,403
25	\$131,459	\$135,403	\$138,788

]																	
	WU+30	\$69,176	\$70,906	\$72,679	\$74,496	\$76,358	\$78,267	\$80,223	\$82,229	\$84,285	\$86,392	\$88,551	\$90,765	\$93,034	\$ 95,360	\$97,744	\$100,188	\$102,693	\$105,260	\$107,891	\$110,589	\$113,353	\$116,187	\$119,093	\$122,069	\$125,121	\$128,249	\$131,456	\$134,742	\$138,111	\$141,563
2024-2025	WU+15	\$67,490	\$69,177	\$70,906	\$72,679	\$74,496	\$76,358	\$78,267	\$80,223	\$82,229	\$84,285	\$86,391	\$88,551	\$90,765	\$93,034	\$95,360	\$97,744	\$100,188	\$102,693	\$105,260	\$107,892	\$110,588	\$113,354	\$116,188	\$119,092	\$122,069	\$125,121	\$128,249	\$131,455	\$134,742	\$ 138,111
200	MA	\$65,524	\$67,162	\$68,841	\$70,562	\$72,326	\$74,134	\$75,987	\$77,887	\$79,834	\$81,830	\$83,875	\$85,972	\$ 88,121	\$90,325	\$92,583	\$94,897	\$97,270	\$99,701	\$102,194	\$104,750	\$107,367	\$110,052	\$112,804	\$115,623	\$118,514	\$121,477	\$124,514	\$127,626	\$130,818	\$134,088
	MA	0	1	2	м	4	2	5a	9	7	00	6	10	10a	11	12	13	14	15	15a	16	17	18	19	20	20a	21	22	23	24	25

	MA Step	MA	WU+15	WU+30
	0	\$66,834	\$68,839	\$70,560
	1	\$68,505	\$70,560	\$72,324
	2	\$70,218	\$ 72,324	\$74,133
	3	\$71,973	\$74,133	\$75,986
	4	\$73,773	\$75,986	\$77,886
	5	\$75,617	\$77,886	\$79,833
	5a	\$77,507	\$79,832	\$81,828
	9	\$79,444	\$81,828	\$83,873
	7	\$81,431	\$83,874	\$85,970
	80	\$83,467	\$85,971	\$88,120
	6	\$85,553	\$88,119	\$90,322
	10	\$87,691	\$90,322	\$92,580
	10a	\$89,884	\$92,580	\$94,895
	11	\$92,131	\$94,895	\$97,267
	12	\$ 94,434	\$97,267	669'66\$
	13	\$96,795	669 66\$	\$102,192
	14	\$99,215	\$102,191	\$104,746
	15	\$101,696	\$104,747	\$107,365
	15a	\$104,238	\$107,365	\$110,049
	16	\$106,844	\$110,049	\$112,800
1	17	\$109,516	\$112,801	\$115,621
	18	\$112,253	\$115,620	\$118,511
	19	\$115,059	\$118,511	\$ 121,474
	20	\$117,936	\$121,474	\$124,511
	20a	\$120,884	\$124,511	\$127,624
	21	\$123,906	\$127,623	\$130,814
	22	\$127,004	\$130,814	\$134,084
	23	\$130,179	\$134,085	\$137,437
	24	\$133,433	\$137,436	\$140,872
		*		

APPENDIX C: NON-CERTIFIED STAFF MEMBERS' COMPENSATION

2022-2023 through 2026-2027

Associate/Entrance Monitor Salaries

The associate's salary shall be increased for each school year (July 1 to June 30) of this Agreement based on the following:

Increase	4.00%	4.00%	4.00%	4.00%	4.00%
School Year	2022-2023	2023-2024	2024-2025	2025-2026	2026-2027

Associates and entrance monitors beginning employment on or after July 1, 2022, will be paid the base hourly rate of \$19.78 which shall be increased by 2.5% annually for the duration of this Agreement.

SALARY SCHEDULE FOOTNOTES

GENERAL

Recently, there has been a misconception among some staff that step placement on the District's salary schedule automatically equals years of service. The parties recognize that in most years a teacher will move one step on the schedule for each year of service to District 36 and, so, the notion of steps equaling years is easily inferred. However, this inference wrongly presumes that for all teachers, and for all years, the District's placement practices, step movement practices and salary schedule configuration remained the same. In fact, throughout the long history of District 36, as well as the recent past, changes have occurred which do not support the notion that steps equal years of service. For example, in some years, steps have been collapsed, in other years expanded and, still, in other years movement has been frozen. These changes usually occur in response to an effort by the District and the Association to ensure that teachers receive an equitable raise for the years under negotiation. In other instances, step placement is affected by leaves of absence, less than full-time service and out-of-district placement; just to name a few. This phenomenon occurs in all school districts. With that said, there may be instances where an individual's years of service with the School District do match the individual's step placement; however, in such instances the step placement is merely a function of the terms of the Agreement and the structure of the salary schedule at that moment in time, with no guarantee that it will not change at some point in the future.

SALARY SCHEDULE FOOTNOTES APPLICABLE TO CERTIFIED AND NON-CERTIFIED STAFF

Staff member to potential penalties, civil fines, fees, employee benefit plan failures or increased tax payments. Further, either party may call for a reopening of negotiations if its provision of health insurance will expose the District, directly or indirectly, to an obligation to pay a tax or other fee, including but not limited to the excise tax imposed by Internal Revenue Code Section 4980, associated with the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act, Pub. L. No. 111-148, as to constitute a discriminatory benefit or other benefit under law or regulation or other official guidance or official interpretation of law subjecting the Board or Either party may call for a reopening of negotiations related to Part VII "Professional Compensation and Related Provisions" of the Contract if, at any time during the term of this Contract, the Board's payment of any health insurance premiums or provision of other health-related benefit under this Contract is deemed amended by the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010, Pub. L. No. 111-152 (2010).

SALARY SCHEDULE FOOTNOTES APPLICABLE TO CERTIFIED STAFF BA AND MA SCHEDULES

HMO - 70%, or family PPO - 70% (not including the PPO 300). Each eligible and participating teacher shall be responsible for paying any remaining percentage 300 during the 2021-2022 school year may remain enrolled in the PPO 300 during the term of this agreement, however, the Board will contribute toward the In addition to the salary paid above, the Board agrees to contribute toward the established premium for the District's health insurance on behalf of each teacher who elects and is eligible for such insurance as follows: single HMO - 90%, single PPO - 80% (not including the PPO 300), single + one HMO - 70%, family toward such premiums on a timely basis as reasonably established by the District. Teachers who began employment after July 1, 2021, are not eligible to enroll in the PPO 300. Teachers who began employment on or prior to July 1, 2021, but who were not enrolled in the PPO 300 during the 2021-2022 school year are not eligible to enroll in the PPO 300 during the term of this agreement. Teachers who began employment on or prior to July 1, 2021, and were enrolled in the PPO premium in the amount of 80% of the single premium rate, and 70% of the family premium rate that were in effect during the 2021-2022 school year. Any annual increase of the PPO 300 premium during the term of this agreement shall be split equally between the Board and the teacher. If a teacher enrolled in the PPO 300 enrolls in another HMO option or PPO option (not including the HDHP), the Board shall make a one-time \$500.00 contribution to the teacher's flexible spending account and the teacher is then no longer eligible to enroll in the PPO 300 during the term of this agreement.

SALARY SCHEDULE FOOTNOTES APPLICABLE TO CERTIFIED STAFF MA SCHEDULE ONLY

Certified Staff who are paid an annual salary beyond the last step on the salary schedule shall be entitled to an additional 2.5% for each lane moved beyond the

Certified Staff who are paid an annual salary beyond the last step on the salary schedule shall be entitled to a 3.1% longevity increase in each year of the agreement. The percentage increase in each school year is over the prior year's base salary.

New faculty shall not be entitled to post masters lane movement except for credit earned and approved while employed at District 36.

Bypass of Steps 10a and 15a for Certified Staff on "a" MA Salary Schedule Steps.

Commencing with the 2022-2023 school year, Certified Staff members will no longer have the option to bypass step 15a. If a Certified Staff member was on step 15 during the 2021-2022 school year, he/she will move to step 15a for the 2022-2023 school year. For 2022-2023 through 2025-2026, Certified Staff members on step 10 will have the option to bypass 10a and will be placed on step 11. Commencing with the 2026-2027 school year, Certified Staff members will no longer have the option to bypass step 10a. If a Certified Staff member is on step 10 during the 2025-2026 school year, he/she will move to step 10a for the 2026-2027 school year.

SALARY SCHEDULE FOOTNOTE APPLICABLE TO NON-CERTIFIED STAFF ONLY

such premiums on a timely basis as reasonably established by the District. Non-Certified Staff members who began employment after July 1, 2021, are not during the 2021-2022 school year are not eligible to enroll in the PPO 300 during the term of this agreement. Non-Certified Staff members who began In addition to the salary paid above, the Board agrees to contribute toward the established premium for the District's health insurance on behalf of each Non-Certified Staff member who elects and is eligible for such insurance as follows: single HMO - 100%, single PPO - 80%, single + one HMO - 70%, family HMO - 70%, or family PPO - 70%. Each eligible and participating Non-Certified Staff member shall be responsible for paying any remaining percentage toward eligible to enroll in the PPO 300. Non-Certified Staff members who began employment on or prior to July 1, 2021, but who were not enrolled in the PPO 300 employment on or prior to July 1, 2021, and were enrolled in the PPO 300 during the 2021-2022 school year may remain enrolled in the PPO 300 during the term of this agreement, however, the Board will contribute toward the premium in the amount of 80% of the single premium rate, and 70% of the family premium rate that were in effect during the 2021-2022 school year. Any annual increase of the PPO 300 premium during the term of this agreement shall be split equally between the Board and the Non-Certified Staff member. If a Non-Certified Staff member enrolled in the PPO 300 enrolls in another HMO option or PPO option not including the HDHP), the Board shall make a one-time \$500.00 contribution to the Non-Certified Staff member's flexible spending account and the Non-Certified Staff member is then no longer eligible to enroll in the PPO 300 during the term of this agreement.

APPENDIX D:CERTIFIED STAFF MEMBER STIPEND LIST

2022-2023 Certified Staff Stipends

Activity	2022-2023
Athletic Director	4,606.35
Cross Country	2,030.24
Girls Volleyball	2,498.75
Boys Volleyball	2,498.75
Boys and Girls Basketball	3,528.33
Volleyball, Basketball Scoreboard, & Score Book Operators (hourly)	25.45
Gym Supervisor & Event Staff (hourly)	25.45
Track and Field	2,030.24
Intramurals/House League - per game basis	34.70
Bus Duty, Crossing Guard, and Lunch Duty (hourly)	33.72
Washburne Department Chairs	4,606.35
CW Dept Chair, English	4,606.35
CW Dept Chair, Social Studies	4,606.35
CW Dept Chair, Science	4,606.35
CW Dept Chair, Math	4,606.35
CW Dept Chair, Related Studies	4,606.35
CW Dept Chair, Spec Ed	4,606.35
Grade Level 5 & Grade Level 6 Chairs	4,606.35
Special Ed Coordinator	4,606.35
Curriculum Work (hourly)	58.22
After School Sports/District sponsored Clubs (hourly)	58.11
Pioneer Room (annual)	913.90
Curriculum Chair (year 2 of the review cycle)	4,606.35
Curriculum Committee Beyond 7 Meetings (per hour)	39.89
WU Committee Members - \$1,250 each -	1,424.67
Mentor - Year 1	3,647.15
Mentor - Year 2	1,458.86
Science Olympiad Coach	4,558.94
Science Olympiad Assistant Coach	2,279.47
Chorus - SK	1,424.67
Chorus - CW	2,849.33
Principal Substitute - daily rate	210.85
Student Government (annual)	2,279.47
WGST (annual)	4,234.95
Faculty Member Mentor	1,458.86
Consulting Teacher	1,823.57
K-4 Grade Level Chair	729.43
CW Team Leader	4,605.66
Outdoor Education – Chaperone (annual)	341.92
Outdoor Education - Leader (5) (annual)	1,709.60

^{*} Stipends to be increased by CPI with a cap of no more than 4% for each subsequent year of the contract

CERTIFIED STAFF MEMBER STIPEND LIST 2023-2024 Certified Staff Stipends

Activity	2023-2024
Athletic Director	4,790.60
Cross Country	2,111.45
Girls Volleyball	2,598.70
Boys Volleyball	2,598.70
Boys and Girls Basketball	3,669.46
Volleyball, Basketball Scoreboard, & Score Book Operators (hourly)	26.47
Gym Supervisor & Event Staff (hourly)	26.47
Track and Field	2,111.45
Intramurals/House League - per game basis	36.09
Bus Duty, Crossing Guard, and Lunch Duty (hourly)	35.07
Washburne Department Chairs	4,790.60
CW Dept Chair, English	4,790.60
CW Dept Chair, Social Studies	4,790.60
CW Dept Chair, Science	4,790.60
CW Dept Chair, Math	4,790.60
CW Dept Chair, Related Studies	4,790.60
CW Dept Chair, Spec Ed	4,790.60
Grade Level 5 & Grade Level 6 Chairs	4,790.60
Special Ed Coordinator	4,790.60
Curriculum Work (hourly)	60.55
After School Sports/District sponsored Clubs (hourly)	60.43
Pioneer Room (annual)	950.45
Curriculum Chair (year 2 of the review cycle)	4,790.60
Curriculum Committee Beyond 7 Meetings (per hour)	41.49
WU Committee Members - \$1,250 each –	1,481.65
Mentor - Year 1	3,793.03
Mentor - Year 2	1,517.21
Science Olympiad Coach	4,741.29
Science Olympiad Assistant Coach	2,370.65
Chorus - SK	1,481.65
Chorus - CW	2,963.31
Principal Substitute - daily rate	219.28
Student Government (annual)	2,370.65
WGST (annual)	4,404.35
Faculty Member Mentor	1,517.21
Consulting Teacher	1,896.52
K-4 Grade Level Chair	758.61
CW Team Leader	4,789.89
Outdoor Education – Chaperone (annual)	355.60
Outdoor Education - Leader (5) (annual)	1,777.98

^{*} Stipends to be increased by CPI with a cap of no more than 4% for each subsequent year of the contract

APPENDIX E: PROMISSORY NOTE

Salary Enhancement Retirement Plan

Employee Name:

Date:	
I have requested to participate in the Salary E VIII, Section 1 of the 2022-2027 Collective Bar	Enhancement Retirement Plan as outlined in Part rgaining Agreement.
	Enhancement Retirement Plan, I understand that I //III, Section 1, which include among them the
Appendix E to this Agreement) wherein the C difference between the total salary enhancemen the faculty member would have received in ac	signed promissory note (in the form appearing as Certified Staff member promises to pay back the nts received under this plan and the actual salary ecordance with the regular salary schedule of the etirement date results in any TRS penalty to the this provision on a non-precedential basis.
understand that I must reimburse the District for paid if my decision to retire early will cause the an Early Retirement Option ("ERO") contribution. District to pay an "excess salary contribution. District an amount equal to the difference between ordinary, creditable earnings had I not particinate by equal payroll deductions for the ren Board of Education of my inability to fulfill the	an indicated in my initial notice of retirement, I or any retirement salary enhancements the District District to pay an "excess salary contribution" or aution to TRS. If my early retirement causes the or ERO contribution to TRS, I will repay to the ween the retirement salary enhancement and my pated in the Program. Such repayment shall be nainder of the school year in which I notify the ne terms of the agreement. In the event that there my amount due to the Board of Education will be ard of Education.
default and service of process and confess to court of competent jurisdiction. I further agree	ferenced payment, I hereby waive any notice of a judgment that may be entered against me in a that in the event of a default of this Promissory e Board of Education of Winnetka School District
By signing this agreement, I agree to the terms a negate my request for participation in the Plan.	stated above. Failure to return this agreement will
I freely consent to the terms of this Agreement.	
Name	Date
Winnetka Professional Agreement – 2022-2027	48

APPENDIX F: NEW CERTIFIED STAFF PLACEMENT

Effective with the 2022-2023 school year, newly hired Certified Staff ("new hires") will be placed on the Winnetka District 36 salary schedule with respect to their prior experience, compensation, and those current employees with a similar level of experience.

In addition, all new hires with a Master Degree, regardless of hours beyond the Master Degree, will be placed on the Master lane. Lane movement will be based on Winnetka University credit earned after employment.

For example, the following guidelines represent the intent of placement:

Years of Experience - Bachelor Degree	Placement
0 to 3 Years	BA Step 0
4 Years	BA Step 1
5 Years	BA Step 2
6 Years	BA Step 3
7 Years	BA Step 4
8 Years	BA Step 5

Years of Experience - Master Degree	Placement
0 to 3 years	MA Step 0
4 Years	MA Step 1
5 Years	MA Step 2
6 Years	MA Step 3
7 Years	MA Step 4
8 Years	MA Step 5
9 Years	MA Step 6
10 Years	MA Step 7
11 Years	MA Step 8
12 Years	MA Step 9

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING PLANNING TIME

This Memorandum is between the Board of Education (Board or District) and the Winnetka Education Association (WEA):

The parties have agreed to provide planning time to Staff as set forth below:

Certified Staff.

Certified Staff members shall receive no less than Two Hundred (200) minutes of planning time per full work week. For less than full work weeks or for part-time teachers, the planning time shall be pro-rated. The primary purpose of this planning time shall be to assist the teacher in meeting his/her individual and collaborative professional responsibilities. The administration shall make an effort to not unreasonably infringe on such time. This paragraph shall not be construed as an effort to diminish prevailing planning time; however, if the Association perceives circumstances cause a diminishment of planning time, the Association may demand to negotiate the issue.

Non-Certified Staff.

Non-Certified staff are required to report for work on 176 days, inclusive of 2.5 Institute days at the start of the school year, and the afternoon of the last day of school (.5 day). Non-certified staff have the ability to flexibly use up to 28 hours of time (the equivalent of 4 workdays or 1,680 minutes) for professional learning or planning with Certified Staff members. This time can be used for planning time with Certified Staff members or professional development, and is not to exceed 180 days of work in a school year. A schedule for use of the 28 hours or 1,680 minutes shall not be predetermined, but instead must be agreed upon by the Principal and the Non-Certified Staff member. In order to receive payment for use of the 28 hours or 1,680 minutes, Non-Certified Staff members must submit a timesheet for hours used for planning time or professional development each school year and may not exceed the maximum number hours/minutes noted above in a single school year. Examples of how this time might be fulfilled include (but not limited to) attending fall and winter Institute Days, scheduled and pre-approved plan time with a teacher after school, or participation in Committee work that is scheduled after school.

By: Zin Ale	By: Tacy Wilman
President, Board of Education	President, Winnetka Educ. Assoc.
	Û
Date: 5-24-2022	Date: 5-24-2022

01 -11/11